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the privilege to know him, and to work along-
side him, was influenced by his greatness. He
will be sorely missed.

TO RECOGNIZE THE SIGNIFICANCE
OF MEXICAN INDEPENDENCE
DAY IN THE CITY OF INDIANAP-
OLIS

HON. JULIA CARSON

OF INDIANA
IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Tuesday, September 14, 1999

Ms. CARSON. Mr. Speaker, | rise today to
recognize the celebration of the anniversary of
Mexico’s Independence Day by the residents
of Indianapolis.

There are over thirteen million people of
Mexican origin or descent currently living in
the United States. Hoosiers of Mexican de-
scent have made vital economic, social, and
cultural contributions to the City of Indianap-
olis. On September 15, 1999, St. Patrick’s
Church of Indianapolis will host a community
celebration in honor of Mexico’s independ-
ence.

In 1810, 189 years ago, Miguel Hidalgo y
Costilla, a Franciscan Priest, voiced “El Grito
de Dolores,” imploring the Mexican people to
fight for their freedom and liberty, revolution-
izing the course of Mexican history. Upon ring-
ing the church bells to announce to the world
that a new movement for freedom had begun,
the venerable and revered Hidalgo pro-
claimed, “Long live our Lady of Guadalupe,
Death to the Gachupines! Viva La
Independencia.”

Today, Hoosiers of Mexican descent posses
a love for freedom and liberty that honors their
heroic forbears who undertook the courageous
battle for Mexican independence. As the strug-
gle for freedom began at the footsteps of the
church, it is fitting that another church and an-
other priest, Father Thomas Fox, will help to
lead the Indianapolis community celebration of
this anniversary.

As we prepare to cross the threshold to the
21st Century, the good work of the entire St.
Patrick's family ensures that Indianapolis
makes welcome all whose hopes and dreams
have led them to our community. It is with
much joy that | join the St. Patrick's commu-
nity in exclaiming “Viva Mexico!”

MOUNT LEBANON BAPTIST
CHURCH

HON. ELEANOR HOLMES NORTON

OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Tuesday, September 14, 1999

Mr. NORTON. Mr. Speaker, in November
1899, the Reverend Theodore Williams, a re-
cent graduate of the School of Theology at
Howard University was inspired by God to es-
tablish a mission which was named High
Street Baptist Church. The mission worshiped
in an old jail, a former detention center for run-
away slaves, on High Street, now Wisconsin
Avenue, NW, in Georgetown. Later, the
church held worship services at the Seventh
Street Baptist Church—which is now named
Jerusalem.

Mr. Speaker, on July 22, 1901, a recognition
council was called, and High Street Baptist,
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which now had thirty-four members, was rec-
ognized as a regular Baptist Church. The con-
gregation continued to grow, and in November
1904 purchased and relocated to a new site at
814 25th NW and was renamed Mount Leb-
anon Baptist Church. An all-day service was
held on Sunday, November 19, 1908, in
thanksgiving for the completion of the work of
renovating this property. Six years later
(1914), the congregation demolished that
building and constructed a new building, to the
glory of God, on the same site. The mortgage
for the new building was burned in 1919. In
April 1923, after 24 years of inspired and zeal-
ous leadership and service as pastor, Rev-
erend Williams was called to his reward. He
was succeeded by the Reverend John Ford,
who served as pastor from 1924 until 1932
when he left to accept a new charge.

In November 1932, the Reverend Edgar
Newton was installed as pastor. His motto was
“Follow me as | follow Christ.” Much was ac-
complished during his leadership of almost
thirty-nine years. New clubs (ministries) and a
building fund were established, significant
growth in membership was accomplished, two
properties adjacent to the church were pur-
chased, services to members and the commu-
nity were expanded, and the site of the
present church was purchased. In addition,
three mortgages were burned—two at the 25th
Street site and one at the present site, 1219
New Jersey Avenue, NW, to which the con-
gregation relocated on January 27, 1963. Rev-
erend Newton retired in June 1971; and on
June 18, 1974, he was called from service to
reward.

The Reverend Vernon C. Brown, a son of
the church, succeeded Reverend Newton to
the pastorate on November 12, 1972, and
served faithfully until his retirement on Decem-
ber 31, 1991. Under his leadership, programs
of services to members and the community
were expanded, including services to senior
citizens and a “feed the hungry” program pro-
viding balanced hot meals at least once per
week. His motto was “The family that prays
together stays together.”

From the time of Reverend Brown'’s retire-
ment until November 1992, pastoral duties
were shared by three sons of the church, the
Reverend Norman King, the Reverend Ben-
jamin C. Sands, and the Reverend William O.
Wilson.

In November 1992, the Reverend H. Lionel
Edmonds became the fifth pastor of the
church. Pursuant to his vision of “building the
beloved community”, great strides have been
made including nearly quadrupling the mem-
bership and the establishment of new min-
istries to meet the spiritual, physical, and intel-
lectual needs of members and the community.
These include a Cedars Discipleship Institute
(Christian education); Sons of Simeon (men’s
ministry); Daughters of Miriam dance classes;
boys’ basketball and football teams; classes to
develop job skills in computers, lock smithing
and electricity; health and beauty workshops;
aerobics classes; and a soon-to-be-opened
child development center. All services are
open to the community as well as to members
of the church.

Mount Lebanon’s community service ex-
tends beyond it's immediate environs. Through
very active involvement in the Washington
Interfaith Network (WIN), an interdenomina-
tional coalition of churches from all eight of the
city's wards, it also participates in other city-
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wide programs to provide low-cost housing for
families and after school care for children, re-
duce crime, provide education/job skills to citi-
zens, and to assure a living wage for all per-
sons employed in the city.

Mr. Speaker, through worship and commu-
nity service, Mount Lebanon carries out its slo-
gan, “We serve a great God; we are a great
people; and we are about a great work.”

Mr. Speaker, | ask that the members of this
body join me in congratulating the Mount Leb-
anon Baptist Church, and celebrating the spir-
itual understanding that has guided their path
for 100 years.

PERSONAL EXPLANATION
HON. XAVIER BECERRA

OF CALIFORNIA
IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Tuesday, September 14, 1999

Mr. BECERRA. Mr. Speaker, on September
14, 1999, | was unavoidably detained during a
rollcall vote: No. 409, on the Motion to Sus-
pend the Rules and Pass, as Amended, H.R.
1883, the Iran Nonproliferation Act of 1999.
Had | been present for the vote, | would have
voted “aye.”

PERSONAL EXPLANATION
HON. KENNY C. HULSHOF

OF MISSOURI
IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Tuesday, September 14, 1999

Mr. HULSHOF. Mr. Speaker, due to travel
delays, | was not present for rollcall votes 405,
406 and 407 on September 13, 1999. Had |
been present, | would have voted “yea” on
rollcall vote 405, “aye” on rollcall vote 406 and
“aye” on rollcall vote 407.

FROM THE INLAND EMPIRE TO
THE WORLD: 75 YEARS OF THE
BEST ORANGES

HON. JERRY LEWIS

OF CALIFORNIA
IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Tuesday, September 14, 1999

Mr. LEWIS of California. Mr. Speaker, | rise
today to pay tribute to the Redlands Foothill
Groves citrus cooperative, which for the past
75 years has been packing the very best
navel oranges in downtown Redlands and
sending them throughout the world.

Chroniclers of California history have sug-
gested that the lush orange groves of the In-
land Empire were as important to the growth
of the Golden State as the gold rush itself.
From the time that the first navel oranges
were successfully grown in towns like Red-
lands, Loma Linda, Highland and East High-
lands, California became known as the pro-
ducer of the very best fruit.

The groves that once covered 49,000 acres
of San Bernardino County have dwindled to
just over 5,000, but the fruit produced by the
members of the Redlands Foothill Groves is
still considered some of the best in the world.
Much of the crop that is packed here is
shipped overseas, where it commands a pre-
mium price as a delicacy. The packinghouse
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is one of only two remaining of the 33 that
once were the economic heart of Redlands.

Redlands Foothill Groves has harvested
57,257,959 field boxes of citrus since it was
founded on Sept. 15, 1924. The fruit is mar-
keted today through Sunkist Growers, Inc.

Mr. Speaker, please join me in congratu-
lating association president C.R. McKeehan,
general manager Tim Farmer and the 220
growers of Redlands Foothill Groves as they
celebrate this milestone in good taste.

TRIBUTE TO ANNA MAE BOX
HON. DANNY K. DAVIS

OF ILLINOIS
IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Tuesday, September 14, 1999

Mr. DAVIS of lllinois. Mr. Speaker, | take
this opportunity to pay tribute to an out-
standing mother, community activist, leader
and citizen who fit the category of unsung her-
oine.

Ms. Anna Mae Box was born on January 5,
1928, on the westside of Chicago to Earlie
and Lula Woods and lived there for the rest of
her life. She grew up, went to Alfred Tennyson
Elementary, John Marshall High and Chicago
State University.

On December 7, 1942, she married Mr. Eu-
gene Box Sr., and in 1959, they moved to
4114 W. Arthington Street in Chicago, where
they raised their children and spent the rest of
their lives.

As a resident of 4114 W. Arthington, Ms.
Box became a dedicated community worker,
striving to prevent erosion of values and urban
decay. She worked untiringly with Presentation
Catholic Church and School and the Daniel
Webster Public School. When the Chicago
Public School System began a program of ag-
gressively pursuing involvement and participa-
tion of citizens, Ms. Box became one of the
very first school community representatives
and all of the schools in her district came to
know and to love her. | too, Mr. Speaker, was
privileged to know, love and respect both her
and her family, because for many years | lived
in the very small community, two blocks over.
Therefore, my knowledge is first hand. Her vi-
brancy and spirit of positivity was a highlight of
her presence, her work and her being. On
September 18th, 1999, upon initiation by the
Honorable Michael D. Chandler, Alderman of
the 24th ward, the Chicago City Council will
be renaming the 4100 block of West
Arthington Street, to Anna May Box Street.

| salute this act to honor the life, work and
legacy of a great woman and wish her family
well as they carry on in her tradition. Edwina
Box-McGee, Willie Box, Jr, Patricia Box-Baker
and all of the family have my best wishes as
you celebrate and renew your own commit-
ments to community service.

THE KNIGHTS OF COLUMBUS CEL-
EBRATE THE CENTENARY OF
THE STATE COUNCIL IN THE DIS-
TRICT OF COLUMBIA

HON. ELEANOR HOLMES NORTON

OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
Tuesday, September 14, 1999

Ms. NORTON. Mr. Speaker, the Order of
the Knights of Columbus is an international

Catholic family and fraternal service organiza-
tion founded in 1882 in New Haven, Con-
necticut, by a 29-year-old parish priest, Father
Michael J. McGivney, as a means for mutual
social and financial support (self-insurance)
among young Catholic men and their families.
From its original 30 members from St. Mary’s
Parish, the Order has grown to more than 1.6
million members worldwide and, unlike many
other similar fraternal organizations, is still
growing.

With its strong American orientation, in con-
trast to the focus on ancestral homelands and
languages of ethnic or immigrant-centered so-
cieties, the fledgling organization had a broad
appeal in the United States, expanding first
through New England and then down the At-
lantic Coast. In the Order's 15th year, 1897,
Washington Council No. 224 was instituted in
the District of Columbia.

Within two years of the establishment of the
Order in the District of the Washington Coun-
cil, four other councils were instituted in the
District: Keane Council No. 353 and Carroll
Council No. 377 in 1898, and Spalding Coun-
cil No. 417 and Potomac Council No. 433 in
1899. The first public appearance of the
Knights of Columbus, as an Order, in the Na-
tion’s Capital was at the dedication of the

Franciscan Monastery on September 17,
1899.
With four councils and several hundred

members in the District, the Supreme Council,
the governing body of the Order, relinquished
its direct supervision of these four councils by
instituting the District of Columbia State Coun-
cil on April 27, 1899. The State Council is the
intermediate level of government within the
Order’s organizational structure whereby the
councils within the State jurisdiction, in accord-
ance with the Bylaws of the Order, can legis-
late their own affairs and elect State officers.
This includes the Deputy Supreme Knight, or
State Deputy, who serves as the chief execu-
tive officer for the jurisdiction. State Councils,
in turn, collectively elect the leadership of the
Supreme Council.

Mr. Speaker, in the more recent years of the
20th century, another 12 councils have been
instituted in the District of Columbia, including
councils at Catholic University of America and
Georgetown University. The 17 councils in the
District of Columbia have a combined mem-
bership of approximately 1900 Knights and
their families.

Mr. Speaker, the Knights of Columbus are
dedicated to four major principles: Charity,
Unity, Fraternity, and Patriotism. Patriotism,
the promotion of responsible citizenship and
good government, is the special focus of the
Fourth Degree of the Order. The Knights, in
colorful capes and chapeaux at ecclesiastical
and patriotic functions are members of the
Color Corps of the Fourth Degree, the “visible
arm” of the Knights of Columbus.

Of these four principles, Charity is the basic
principle of the Order. Within the Order's
“Surge ... with Service” program, the major
program areas are service to Church, Commu-
nity, Family and Youth. Within these program
areas, in 1998, the Knights of Columbus
Order-wide raised and distributed
$110,692,742 for charitable and benevolent
causes. In addition, Knights worldwide volun-
teered a total of 55,033,160 hours of service
to others.

Of these total numbers for 1998, the 17
councils within the jurisdiction of the District of
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Columbia raised and distributed $177,008 and
volunteered a total of 109,756 hours in service
to others in the four primary programs. Nota-
ble within these figures is the support to care
of the elderly through The Little Sisters of the
Poor (a relationship dating back to 1899), and
to persons with developmental disabilities
through support of the Lt. Joseph P. Kennedy
Institute for the past three decades.

Mr. Speaker, throughout the 117-year his-
tory of the Knights of Columbus and, most
particularly the 100-year history of the District
of Columbia State Council, the Order has
been in the forefront of service to the Church,
the Community, Families and Youth and, most
especially, in service to the United States. The
greatest gift of the Knights of Columbus to
mankind is the truly personal commitment of
time and energy individual knights and their
families give of themselves to charitable and
benevolent causes. The Knights of Columbus,
within the jurisdiction of the District of Colum-
bia State Council are dedicated to maintaining
and, indeed, increasing the level of service to
others in the new Century and Millennium fast
approaching.

Mr. Speaker, | ask that all of my colleagues
join me in saluting the District of Columbia
State Council of the Knights of Columbus for
a century of selfless service and patriotism.

TRIBUTE TO LANE KIRKLAND:
CHAMPION FOR WORKING PEO-
PLE IN AMERICA AND AROUND
THE WORLD

HON. TOM LANTOS

OF CALIFORNIA
IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Tuesday, September 14, 1999

Mr. LANTOS. Mr. Speaker, America lost
one of its most prominent and honored patri-
ots on August 14 when Lane Kirkland, the
president of the AFL-CIO from 1979 to 1995,
passed away. He devoted his life to advancing
the interests of our nation’s working families,
and what he achieved has benefited millions
of our country’s citizens.

Mr. Kirkland will long be remembered for re-
unifying the labor movement, welcoming the
United Auto Workers, the Teamsters, and
other major unions back into the AFL-CIO. He
will also be remembered for his steadfast ad-
vocacy for civil rights. As a national labor lead-
er during the 1960’s, he rallied organized labor
behind the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and other
anti-discrimination measures. He will also be
remembered fondly for his passion as a self-
professed “pure and simple and
unreconstructed” supporter of Franklin Delano
Roosevelt's New Deal, one who believed in
the responsibility of government to help create
hope and opportunity for those less fortunate.
The influence of Lane Kirland’s convictions,
however, did not stop at America’s borders.
He fought for freedom and human rights
around the world, and future generations will
long remember him as a man who helped cre-
ate the first cracks in the Iron Curtain.

Throughout his half-century in the leader-
ship of the AFL-CIO, Kirkland never shied
away from his principal belief that the labor
movement must not ignore the struggles of its
oppressed counterparts abroad. He placed the
full weight of America’s unions behind con-
demnation of racist apartheid in South Africa
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